
 

QPB120214agn  Page 1 of 3 

February 10, 2012 
 

MEETING NOTICE 
 

 
TO:  Members, Boards of Trustees: 
 

   Firefighters’ Retirement System 

   General Employees’ Retirement System 

   Police Officers’ Retirement System 
 

FROM: Judy L. Bullock, Acting City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: AGENDA - JOINT QUARTERLY MEETING - 

  Tuesday, February 14, 2012 - 3:00 P.M. 
 

The following is the Agenda of Business for the "Joint Quarterly Meeting" scheduled for Tuesday, 

February 14, 2012, at 3:00 P.M., in the Council Chamber, 1st Floor, City Hall, 11 North 3rd 

Street, Jacksonville Beach: 
 

Call to Order 
 

Roll Call:  Firefighters’ Board: Bruce Anderson, Ed Dawson, Dennis Povloski,  

      Steve Sciotto, Deborah White 
   

  General Employees’ Board: Penny Christian, Steve Hartkemeyer, Nelson Luna, 

Brandon Maresma, Kelly Paul 
 

     Police Officers’ Board:   Steve Corbitt, Marvin DuPree, Alan Grant,  

          David Young 
 

Consideration by Police Officers’ Board of Trustees 
 

 1. Appointment of Fifth Member to Pension Board – 2-Year Term Expiring on March 31, 2014 

(Position currently vacant) 
 

Consideration by Firefighters’ Board of Trustees 
 

2. Appointment of Fifth Member to Pension Board – 2-Year Term Expiring on March 31, 2014 

(Position currently held by Deborah White) 

 

Consideration by Firefighters’ and Police Officers’ Board of Trustees 
 

 3. Oath of Office – New Pension Trustees 

 

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees 
 

 4. Approval of Minutes: Joint Quarterly Meeting held November 9, 2011 

  

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees 
 

 5. Quarterly Review of DROP Interest Rate (has remained at 6% since inception) 
 

 Information from Attorney and Actuary on Investment Returns 



Members, Boards of Trustees 

Joint Quarterly Meeting Agenda – 

February 14, 2012 
 

 

 

QPB120214agn  Page 2 of 3 

Consideration by General Employees’  Board of Trustees 
 

 6. Applications to Participate in DROP –  
 

 (a) Jones, Nathan B. – Public Works Department, Effective January 1, 2012; Meets Service 

Requirements 

 (b) Neith, Carol –  Personnel Department, Effective January 1, 2012; Meets Age 

Requirements 

 (c) San Juan, Juan - Personnel Department, Effective January 1, 2012; Meets Age 

Requirements 

 (d) Vanderwal, ViAnn - Finance Department, Effective March 1, 2012; Meets Age 

Requirements 
 

 7. Application for Retirement – 
 

 (a) Perkins, James J. - Beaches Energy Services, Effective March 1, 2012; Meets Service 

Requirements 
 

 8. Application for Deferred (Vested) – 
 

 (a) Perritte, Victor K. - Beaches Energy Services, Effective 06/01/2016 (Eligible for benefits 

at age 60) 

Consideration by Police Officers’  Board of Trustees 
 

 9. Application to Participate in the DROP –  
 

 (a) Montgomery Jr., Kenneth – Police Officer, Effective February 1, 2012; Meets Age 

Requirements 

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees  
  

10. Quarterly Report – MD Sass 
 

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees  
  

11. Quarterly Report – The Bogdahn Group 

   

Consideration by Firefighters’ Board of Trustees 
 

12. Election of Officers: Chairperson (Currently – Bruce Anderson) 

    Chairperson Pro-Tem (Currently - Deborah White) 

    Secretary (Currently – Ed Dawson) 

 

 

 

 



Members, Boards of Trustees 

Joint Quarterly Meeting Agenda – 

February 14, 2012 
 

 

 

QPB120214agn  Page 3 of 3 

Consideration by General Employees’ Board of Trustees 

 

13. Election of Officers: Chairperson (Currently – Brandon Maresma) 

    Chairperson Pro-Tem (Currently – Penny Christian) 
  

 (Required by Ordinance: Administrator/Secretary – Acting City Clerk, Judy Bullock 

     Treasurer – Finance Officer, Harry Royal) 
 

Consideration by Police Officers’ Board of Trustees 
 

14. Election of Officers: Chairperson (Currently – David Young) 

    Chairperson Pro-Tem (Currently - Steve Corbitt) 

    Secretary (Currently – Marvin DuPree) 
 

15. Pension Administrator’s Report 
 

 General Employees’ Retirement System – 

Report of Overpayment – Jennings Skipper - $7,027.56 

 Status Update on IRS Determinations 

 Pension Certifications were mailed to all retirees/beneficiaries in early December 2011 

 Report of Member Contribution Refunds/Pension Buybacks 

  16. Adjournment  

 

/jlb 

 

c: George Forbes, City Manager 

 Harry Royal, Finance Officer 

 Rosalyn Jackson, Internal Auditor 

 Robert Sugarman, Sugarman and Susskind, P.A.  

 Mary McTague, Atlanta Capital Management 

 Rich O’Hara, M D Sass Associates, Inc. 

 Sue Engstrom, M D Sass Associates, Inc. 

 Andy Cantor, Sawgrass Asset Management 

 Dan Johnson, The Bogdahn Group 

 Cindy Farrow, Salem Trust 

 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at any meeting 
or hearing, he may need a record of the proceedings, and, for such purpose, he may need to ensure a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with 
disabilities needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office no 
later than 12:00 P.M., on Friday, February 10, 2012.. 







 

 

QPB111109min   Page 1 of 5 

Minutes of JOINT QUARTERLY Meeting of the 

Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ 

Retirement Systems, held Wednesday, November 9, 2011,  

at 3:00 P.M., in the Council Chamber, 11 North 3
rd

 Street, 

Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

 

 

Call to Order 
 

Brandon Maresma of the General Employees’ Board of Trustees called the meeting to order at 3:00 

p.m.  

 

Roll Call as follows: 

 

Firefighters’ Board:   General Employees’ Board:  Police Officers’ Board: 

 

Bruce Anderson    Penny Christian     Steve Corbitt 

Ed Dawson         Steve Hartkemeyer  Marvin Dupree     

Steve Sciotto   Nelson Luna            Alan Grant  

Deborah White absent   Brandon Maresma  C. David Young absent 

   Kelly Paul      

 

Also present were Acting City Clerk/Pension Manager Judy Bullock, and Nancy Pyatte, City 

Clerk’s office. 

 

New Business 

 

Item 1 - Approval of Minutes:  Special Police Officers’ Meeting held July 21, 2011 

 

Consideration by Police Officers’ Board of Trustees 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Corbitt, seconded by Mr. Dupree, to approve the minutes of the 

Special Police Officers’ meeting held July 21, 2011, as presented. 

 

Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously. 
 

Item 2 - Approval of Minutes: Joint Quarterly Meeting held August 10, 2011 

                            Special Joint Meeting held September 21, 2011 

 

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Anderson, seconded by Mr. Dawson, to approve the minutes of the 

Joint Quarterly meeting held August 10, 2011, as presented, and the minutes of the Special 

Joint meeting held September 21, 2011, as presented. 

 

Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously. 

 



Minutes of Joint Quarterly Pension Meeting, 

held Wednesday, November 9, 2011 
 

 

 

QPB111109min    Page 2 of 5 

Item 3 - Quarterly Review of DROP Interest Rate – (has remained at 6% since inception) 

 

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees 

 

Judy Bullock, Pension Administrator, advised the Boards that they should consider lowering the 6% 

interest currently paid on DROP accounts, due to the decrease in investment returns.  She also 

reminded the trustees, that any deficit in funding must be made up by the City, who is the guarantor 

of the pension plans. 

 

Motion: Following a brief discussion, it was moved by Mr. Dupree to lower the DROP Interest 

Rate to 3.5%.  Motion died for lack of a second. 

 

A lengthy discussion ensued about the Trustees’ fiduciary responsibility to the plan, lower 

investment returns and if continuing the interest rate of 6% is prudent in today’s market.  

 

General Employees’ 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Hartkemeyer, seconded by Ms. Christian, for the DROP Interest Rate 

to be lowered to 3.5% for the ensuing quarter. 

   

  Roll call vote:  Ayes – Christian and Hartkemeyer 

    Nays – Luna, Maresma, and Paul  

    Motion failed by a vote of 2 to 3. 

 

General Employees’ 
Motion: It was moved by Mr. Luna, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, for the DROP Interest Rate to 

be lowered to 5% for the ensuing quarter. 

   

  Roll call vote:  Ayes – Luna, Maresma, Paul, Christian, and Hartkemeyer; motion carried. 

 

Firefighters’ 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Anderson for the DROP Interest Rate to be lowered to 5% for the 

    ensuing quarter.  Motion died for a lack of a second.  

 

Police Officers’ 
Motion: It was moved by Mr. Grant, seconded by Mr. DuPree, for the DROP Interest Rate to be 

lowered to 5% for the ensuing quarter. 

 

    Roll call vote:  Ayes – Dupree, and Grant  

                  Nays – Corbitt   

                   Motion failed by a vote of 2 to 1.  

 

Firefighters’ 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Sciotto, seconded by Mr. Dawson, for the DROP Interest Rate to 

remain at 6% for the ensuing quarter. 

 



Minutes of Joint Quarterly Pension Meeting, 

held Wednesday, November 9, 2011 
 

 

 

QPB111109min    Page 3 of 5 

    Roll call vote:  Ayes – Dawson, and Sciotto  

                  Nays – Anderson   

                   Motion failed by a vote of 2 to 1. 

 

At this point there was additional discussion about the need to be fiscally responsible.  It was 

suggested for the next quarterly meeting that the actuary, Brad Armstrong, provide data regarding 

DROP interest rate.  

 

Ms. Bullock advised that an interest rate still needed to be in place for the ensuing quarter. There 

was a brief discussion and the General Employees’ Board decided to revisit their previous motion. 

 

General Employees’ 
Motion: It was moved by Mr. Luna, seconded by Ms. Paul, for the DROP Interest Rate to revert 

back to 6% for the ensuing quarter. 

   

  Roll call vote:  Ayes – Maresma, Paul, Christian, Luna, and Hartkemeyer; motion carried. 

 

Police Officers’ 
Motion: It was moved by Mr. Corbitt, seconded by Mr. Grant, for the DROP Interest Rate to 

remain at 6% for the ensuing quarter. 

 

    Roll call vote:  Ayes – Dupree, Grant , and Corbitt; motion passed.  

 

Firefighters’ 
Motion: It was moved by Mr. Sciotto, seconded by Mr. Dawson, for the DROP Interest Rate to 

remain at 6% for the ensuing quarter. 

 

    Roll call vote:  Ayes – Sciotto, Anderson, and Dawson; motion passed.  

 

Item 4 – Mandatory Local Law Pension Plan Revisions (Senate Bill 1128) 

 

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees 

 

Ms. Bullock referred to the correspondence from pension counsel Robert Sugarman’s office 

summarizing the changes to Florida’s local government defined benefit retirement plans with 

amendments to Florida Statutes, Chapters 112, 175 and 185.  This became law on June 23, 2011.  Ms. 

Bullock advised that the information was being provided to the trustees for informational purposes. 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Luna, seconded by Ms. Christian, to accept the information. 

 

Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously. 

 

  



Minutes of Joint Quarterly Pension Meeting, 

held Wednesday, November 9, 2011 
 

 

 

QPB111109min    Page 4 of 5 

Item 5 – Application to Participate in the DROP  

  
Consideration by General Employees’ Board of Trustees 

 

(a) Larry J. Croft - Beaches Energy Services, Effective January 1, 2012; Meets Age                    

Requirements 

 

     Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Luna, seconded by Ms. Christian, to approve Mr. Croft’s 

application. 

 

              Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously. 

  

(b) Harry E. Royal  - Finance Department, Effective March 1, 2012; Meets Age Requirements 

 

     Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Hartkemeyer, seconded by Ms. Christian, to approve the           

application for DROP. 
          

                          Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously.    
 

Item 6 – Sawgrass Asset Management Quarterly Report 

 

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees 

 

Mr. Greg Goss reviewed the investment report (copy on file) for the third quarter, ending September 30, 

2011. 

 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Christian, seconded by Mr. Corbitt, to accept the report. 

 

 Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously. 

 

Item 7 – MD Sass Quarterly Report 

 

Consideration by Firefighters’, General Employees’ and Police Officers’ Boards of Trustees 

 

Mr. Jason Rapp reviewed the reports (copy on file) for the third quarter, ending September 30, 2011. 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Corbitt, seconded by Mr. Dawson, to accept the report. 

 

 Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously. 
 

Item 8 – The Bogdahn Group Quarterly Report 

 

Troy Brown reviewed the report from Pension Consultants, The Bogdahn Group.  (copy on file).  

 

  



Minutes of Joint Quarterly Pension Meeting, 

held Wednesday, November 9, 2011 
 

 

 

QPB111109min    Page 5 of 5 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Corbitt, seconded by Mr. Grant, to accept the 3
rd

 Quarter 2011 

report. 

 Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously. 
 

Item 9 – Pension Administrator’s Report 

 

Report of Member Contribution Refunds/Pension Buybacks 

 
Ms. Bullock presented the Report of Member Contribution Refunds (provided for informational 

purposes). 

 

Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Christian, seconded by Mr. Corbitt, to accept the report. 

 

     Voice vote resulted in all ayes by Board members; motion carried unanimously. 

 

Adjournment 
 

There being no further business coming before the Boards, Mr. Maresma adjourned the meeting at 

4:45 p.m. 
  

Submitted by: Nancy J. Pyatte 

 Office of the City Clerk 

 

 

  Approval: 

 

 

    

  Chairperson 

 

 

  Date: February 14, 2012  

 

 


















